Contents

ARTICLES
Aspects of Recusancy in Oxfordshire: the Case of Owen Fletcher of Woodstock (1553–c.1635) 1
MARY HODGES

The Hundred Books and Rural Debt: Shrivenham Hundred in the Seventeenth Century 9
JOAN DILS

Changes through Time: John Combes’s Charity School, its Architecture, Function, and History 19
DAVID CLARK AND DIANA WOOD

Bury Knowle House in Context: its History, Design, and Architecture 37
RHONA WALKER

The Basque Refugee Children in Oxfordshire during the Spanish Civil War: Politically Charged Project or Humanitarian Endeavour? 55
MEIRIÁN JUMP

REPORTS
The Excavation of Iron Age, Roman, Medieval, and Civil War Features South of the Vineyard, Abingdon, Oxfordshire 73
REBECCA DEVANEY, ET AL.

Excavations at Abingdon West Central Redevelopment: Iron Age, Roman, Medieval, and Post-medieval Activity in Abingdon 107
KATE BRADY, ALEX SMITH, AND GRANVILLE LAWS

Roman and Medieval Occupation at 47–53 High Street, Burford, Oxfordshire 203
SARAH COLES, JENNIFER LOWE, AND STEVE PRESTON

NOTE
An Oxfordshire Roman Millefiori Disc 219
CAROL ANDERSON

REVIEWS
Simon Townley, ed., Victoria History of the Counties of England, Oxfordshire, 15: Carterton, Minster Lovell and Environs, Bampton Hundred, Part Three 221
ALLEN HOWKINS

GEOFFREY TYACK

Trevor Rowley, The English Landscape in the Twentieth Century 224
GRAHAM LEWIS

Published in Oxoniensia 2007, (c) Oxfordshire Architectural and Historical Society
EDITORIAL NOTICE

Oxoniensia is issued to members of the Oxfordshire Architectural and Historical Society for a subscription price of £12. Applications for membership should be made to The Membership Secretary, Oxfordshire Architectural and Historical Society, 9 King’s End, Bicester OX26 6DR.

Interested contributors to Oxoniensia are asked to submit two copies of their work to the Editor, Diana Wood, 7 Binwood Avenue, Headington, Oxford OX3 8NY (ditilignum@talktalk.net) no later than 1 April each year. The Editor will be pleased to advise on preliminary drafts. Notes for Contributors are available on the Society’s website, www.oahs.org.uk.

Copies of most back numbers of Oxoniensia are available from Heritage Marketing and Publications Ltd, Hill Farm – Unit F, Castle Acre Road, Great Dunham, King’s Lynn, Norfolk PE32 2LP, tel. 01760 755645, website: www.heritagemp.com. The Society is always grateful for donations of unwanted sets.

OXFORDSHIRE ARCHITECTURAL AND HISTORICAL SOCIETY

The Society, formed in 1972 by the amalgamation of the Oxford Architectural and Historical Society (founded in 1839) and the Oxfordshire Archaeological Society (founded in 1852), exists to further the study of the archaeology, topography, architecture, and history of Oxford and Oxfordshire. In addition to publishing Oxoniensia, it provides a programme of winter lectures in Oxford and organizes excursions to places of architectural, historical, or archaeological interest. There is a Victorian Group and, closely associated with it, a Listed Buildings Committee, through which the Society attempts to safeguard historical buildings and monuments.

Subscriptions (£12 individual, £17 family membership) should be sent to the Membership Secretary, 9 Kings End, Bicester OX26 6DR, who will be pleased to supply further information about the Society. The Society’s website can be found at www.oahs.org.uk.

OXFORDSHIRE RECORD SOCIETY

The Oxfordshire Record Society publishes documents relating to the County of Oxford. The annual subscription, currently only £9, supports the Society’s work and entitles members to receive volumes at less than the normal retail price. Recent volumes issued by the Society include:

Index to the Probate Records of Oxfordshire, 1733-1857, ed. D. M. Barratt et al.
Brightwell Parish Diaries, 1774-1892, ed. M. Spurrell
Woodstock Borough Court Books, ed. R. Taylor et al.
Oxfordshire Forest Plead, 1246-1609, ed. B. Schumer

Forthcoming volumes include Bishop Wilberforce’s Memoranda Books, ed. R. Pugh.

Applications for membership should be sent to Mr G. Hannah, Hon. Secretary, Summerfields School, Mayfield Road, Oxford OX2 7EN. New members receive a volume of their choice from those still in print.

OXFORD HISTORICAL SOCIETY

Founded in 1884, the Society publishes editions of historical records relating to the City, University, and Colleges of Oxford. To date 140 volumes have been issued, of which almost 100 are still in print. Works available from the Society include Condeaux and Merry’s bibliographies of the City of Oxford (1976), Oxfordshire (1950), and a supplementary volume on Oxfordshire (1981). The Society’s latest publications are The Account Rolls of University College, Oxford, ed. R. H. Darwall-Smith, 2 vols, and Registrum Annalium Mertonensis, 1663-1660, ed. J. R. L. Highfield.

Subscribers receive a new hardback volume every two years, an annual newsletter, and the opportunity to purchase previous publications at a generous discount on retail prices. Enquiries about subscription should be sent to the Hon. Secretary, Dr E. M. P. Wells, 24 Tree Lane, Iffley Village, Oxford OX4 4EY.

OXFORDSHIRE LOCAL HISTORY ASSOCIATION

The Association was founded in 1980 to further the study of local history in the County, and in particular to promote links between amateur local historians and academic and professional bodies involved in local history. The Association organizes twice-yearly meetings or day schools in Oxford and elsewhere in the County and publishes a quarterly newsletter and twice-yearly journal, Oxfordshire Local History.

Applications for membership should be addressed to the Hon. Secretary, Mr Trevor Davies, 16 Hurst Close, Wallingford OX10 9BQ (trefor.davies@ntlworld.com). Subscriptions (£9) may be sent to the Hon. Treasurer, Mr L. Tiller, East House, Roke Marsh, Wallingford OX10 6BJ.

BANBURY HISTORICAL SOCIETY

The Society publishes volumes of records relating to Banbury and its neighbourhood, including parts of Northamptonshire and Warwickshire, as well as Oxfordshire. Thirty volumes have been published to date. These include all pre-General Registration Banbury Parish Registers, 1558-1838, now mostly out of print, but available on microfiche from Oxfordshire Family History Society, c/o Oxfordshire Studies, Central Library, Westgate, Oxford OX1 1DQ.

Recent volumes available from Banbury Museum include:
Banbury Gaol Records, ed. P. Renold
The ‘Bawdy Court’ of Banbury: the Act Book of the Peculiar Court of Banbury, 1625-1638, ed. R. K. Gilker
King’s Sutton Churchwardens’ Accounts, 1636-1700, ed. P. Hayne
Banbury Chapbooks, ed. L. J. De Freitas
Banbury Past through Artists’ Eyes, ed. Simon Townsend and Jeremy Gibson.


The Society’s magazine, Cake and Cockhorse, is issued to members three times a year. Those from 1959 to 2003 are available to buy on a CD-ROM or free online at http://tinyurl.com/4kn7g. Subscriptions (£13) are payable to the Hon. Secretary, c/o Banbury Museum, Spicewall Park Road, Banbury OX16 2PQ.

Published in Oxoniensia 2007, (c) Oxfordshire Architectural and Historical Society